Public Document Pack

day, 29 rch 2016
T e0g a? March 201 EASTBOURNE | 1\

Borough Council
Town Hall, Eastbourne

www.eastbourne.gov.uk

Conservation Area Advisory Group

Members of the public are welcome to attend and listen to the discussion of
items in the “open” part of the meeting. Please see notes at end of agenda
concerning public rights to speak and ask questions.

The Conservation Area Advisory Group meets in Meeting Room 1
which is located on the ground floor. Entrance is via the main door or
access ramp at the front of the Town Hall. Parking bays for blue
badge holders are available in front of the Town Hall and in the car
park at the rear of the Town Hall.

An induction loop operates to enhance sound for deaf people who use

@, a hearing aid or loop listener.
' T If you require further information or assistance please contact the

Local Democracy team - contact details at end of this agenda.

This agenda and accompanying reports are published on the Council’s website in
PDF format which means you can use the “read out loud” facility of Adobe
Acrobat Reader.

Please ask if you would like this agenda and/or any of the reports in an
alternative format.

MEMBERS: Councillor Rodohan (Chairman); Councillor Swansborough (Deputy-
Chairman); Councillors Belsey and Smart

Mr Crook (Royal Institute of British Architects), Mr Howell
(Eastbourne Society) and Mr Morehen (Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors)

Agenda

1 Minutes of the meeting held on 16 February 2016. (Pages 1 - 4)
2 Apologies for absence.
3 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) by members

as required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of other
interests as required by the Code of Conduct.




4 Questions by members of the public.

On matters not already included on the agenda and for which prior written
notice has been given (total time allowed 15 minutes).

5 Urgent items of business.

The Chairman to notify the Group of any items of urgent business to be
added to the agenda.

6 Right to address the meeting/order of business.
The Chairman to report any requests received to address the Group from a
member of the public or from a Councillor in respect of an item listed below
and to invite the Group to consider taking such items at the commencement
of the meeting.

7 Planning Applications for Consideration. (Pages 5 - 6)
Specialist Advisor (Planning) to report on applications.

8 Seafront Window Survey. (Pages 7 - 104)
Report of Specialist Advisor (Planning).

9 New Listings

Specialist Advisor (Planning) to update the Group on newly listed buildings
in Eastbourne - Verbal Report.

10 Dates of future meetings - All at 6.00 p.m. at the Town Hall

24 May 2016 10 January 2017
12 July 2016 21 February 2017
23 August 2016 4 April 2017

4 October 2016 23 May 2017

15 November 2016

Inspection of Background Papers - Please see contact details listed in each report.

Councillor Right of Address - Councillors wishing to address the meeting who are
not members of the Committee must notify the Chairman in advance.

Public Right of Address - Requests by members of the public to speak on a matter
which is listed in this agenda must be received in writing by no later than 12 Noon, 2
working days before the meeting e.g. if the meeting is on a Tuesday, received by 12
Noon on the preceding Friday). The request should be made to Local Democracy at
the address listed below. The request may be made by letter, fax or e-mail. For
further details on the rules about speaking at meetings please contact Local
Democracy.



Disclosure of interests - Members should declare their interest in a matter at the
beginning of the meeting, and again, at the point at which that agenda item is
introduced.

Members must declare the existence and nature of any interest.

In the case of a DPI, if the interest is not registered (nor the subject of a pending
notification) details of the nature of the interest must be reported to the meeting by
the member and subsequently notified in writing to the Monitoring Officer within 28
days.

If a member has a DPI or other prejudicial interest he/she must leave the room when
the matter is being considered (unless he/she has obtained a dispensation). If a
member has a DPI he/she may not make representations first.

Further Information

Councillor contact details, committee membership lists and other related information
is also available from Local Democracy.

Local Democracy, 1 Grove Road, Eastbourne, BN21 4TW

Tel: (01323) 415021/5023 Minicom: (01323) 415111, Fax: (01323) 410322
E Mail: localdemocracy@eastbourne.gov.uk

Website at www.eastbourne.gov.uk

For general Council enquiries, please telephone (01323) 410000 or E-mail:
enquiries@eastbourne.gov.uk



mailto:localdemocracy@eastbourne.gov.uk
http://www.eastbourne.gov.uk/
mailto:enquiries@eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:enquiries@eastbourne.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

Tuesday, 16 February 2016

4£6.00 pm EASTBOURNE | l\

Borough Council
——
—

www.eastbourne.gov.uk

Conservation Area Advisory Group

PRESENT:-
Councillor Rodohan (Chairman) and Councillors Swansborough and Smart
OFFICERS:

Mrs S Leete-Groves, Specialist Advisor (Conservation)

43 Minutes of the meeting held on 5 January 2016.

The minutes of the meeting held on 5 January 2016 were submitted and
approved and the Chairman was authorised to sign them as a correct
record.

44 Apologies for absence.

An apology for absence was reported from Councillor Belsey.

45 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) by
members as required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of
other interests as required by the Code of Conduct.

None were declared.

46 Planning Applications - Decisions of the Borough Council.

The decisions of the Planning Committee on applications in Conservation
Areas were reported.

NOTED.

47 Planning Applications for Consideration.

The Specialist Advisor (Conservation) reported on planning applications for
consideration in Conservation Areas. The Group’s comments were set out in
the schedule below.

1) 151153, CAVENDISH HOTEL, 37-40 GRAND PARADE
EASTBOURNE

Heritage Value: Town Centre and Seafront Conservation Area

Proposal: Alteration of internal layout to create further bedrooms. External
door, window & dormer window alterations additions to suit new internal
layout.

CAAG Comments: No objections raised.

Page 1



Conservation Area Advisory Group
Tuesday, 16 February 2016

2) 151363 (PP) & 151386 (LB), 6 CORNFIELD TERRACE,
EASTBOURNE, BN21 4NN

Heritage Value: Listed Building & Town Centre and Seafront Conservation
Area

Proposal: Conversion of lower ground floor and first floor to two self-
contained one bedroom flats (in conjunction with Listed Building Consent
ref. 151386).

CAAG Comments: The Group raised no objections to the proposal in
principal. Externally it was felt that the proposal would enhance the building
and character of the surrounding area, subject to the windows being double
glazed and traditionally formed in timber. Internally the Group raised
concerns that the insertion of an additional staircase and the loss of
traditional features would result in harm to the significance associated with
the listed building. It was recommended that officers negotiate with the
applicant to achieve a similar proposal that complimented and enhanced the
significance of the listed building.

3) 160056, REGENT HOTEL, 3 CAVENDISH PLACE, EASTBOURNE,
EAST SUSSEX, BN21 3EJ

Heritage Value: Listed Building & Town Centre and Seafront Conservation
Area

Proposal: Conversion of property into 5 flats 3no 2 bed flats and 2no 1 bed
flats.

CAAG Comments: No objections raised.

4) 160021, 28 SEASIDE ROAD, EASTBOURNE, EAST SUSSEX, BN21
3PB

Heritage Value: Town Centre and Seafront Conservation Area
Proposal: Retrospective application for alterations to shopfront.
CAAG Comments: No objections raised.

5) 160087, ROYAL HIPPODROME THEATRE, 106-112 SEASIDE
ROAD, BN21 3PF

Heritage Value: Listed Building & Town Centre and Seafront Conservation
Area

Proposal: Installation of 5mx2m mural on the west elevation of the
hippodrome theatre.

CAAG Comments: No objections raised.

Ms Hackney-Ring presented the mural and responded to questions from the
Group.

By virtue of Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
Chairman was of the opinion that the following recently received
application, which was not listed on the agenda, should be considered in
order that the application might be referred to the Planning Committee at
the earliest opportunity.

Page 2



Conservation Area Advisory Group
Tuesday, 16 February 2016

6) 7 CAREW ROAD, UPPERTON
Location and Heritage Status: Upperton Conservation Area

Proposal: Demolition of a garage and minor alteration to the existing
dwelling to facilitate the erection of a 2 bedroom detached dwelling,
together with parking spaces and widening of an existing crossover.

CAAG Comments: The Group had no objections to the proposal in
principle. Concerns were however raised to the scale of the proposed
dwelling and partial loss of the flint and brick wall, which the Group
considered would result in adverse harm to the character of the building of
local interest and surrounding conservation area. It was recommended that
a single storey unit would be acceptable, similar to what was proposed and
approved at number 11 in 2014. The Group also supported the retention of
the brick and flint boundary wall.

NOTED.

48 Seafront Window Survey.

It was agreed to defer this item to the next meeting, to allow officers time
to complete the Seafront Window Survey and present to the Group.

NOTED.

49 New Listings

The Specialist Advisor (Conservation) advised that there were no new
listings.

NOTED.

50 Dates of future meetings - All at 6.00 p.m. at the Town Hall

The date of the next meeting was confirmed as the 29 March 2016.

The meeting closed at 7.05 pm

Councillor Rodohan (Chairman)

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7
EASTBOURNE | 1\

Borough Council

www.eastbourne.gov.uk

Conservation Area Advisory Group — 29 March 2016
Planning Applications for Consideration

For further information on applications being considered please visit the Council’s planning system
http:www.eastbourne.gov.uk/planningapplications and enter the relevant application number.

1) 160128, WISH TOWER MESS ROOM AND YARD, KING EDWARDS PARADE, EASTBOURNE,

Heritage Value: Schedule Ancient Monument, Grade II listed building sited in the Town Centre and
Seafront Conservation Area

Proposal: Installation of new war memorial at the wish tower, with associated hard landscaping.

2) 151073, FLAT 3, 21 ENYS ROAD, EASTBOURNE, EAST SUSSEX, BN21 2DG
Heritage Value: Upperton Conservation Area
Proposal: Installation of UPVC window and French doors on front elevation of first floor flat

3) 160037, DEVONSHIRE PARK THEATRE, 8 COMPTON STREET, EASTBOURNE
Heritage Value: Setting of Grade II listed building & Area of High Townscape Value

Proposal: Erection of replacement front boundary wall, demolition of existing planter and installation
of new hardstanding to create x 6 disabled parking bays in front forecourt of Devonshire Park
Theatre.

4) 160259, 15 HARTFIELD ROAD, EASTBOURNE, EAST SUSSEX, BN21 2AP
Heritage Value: Upperton Conservation Area

Proposal: Erection of detached 5 no. bed dwelling on land to the rear of 15 Hartfield Road facing
Eversfield Road.

Page 5


http://www.eastbourne.gov.uk/planningapplications/
http://www.eastbourne.gov.uk/planningapplications/
http://www.eastbourne.gov.uk/planningapplications/

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 8

CONSERVATION AREA ADVISORY COMMITTEE
DATE March 29 2016

SUBJECT To outline the extent of traditional/non-
traditional windows within the properties
along Eastbourne Seafront from 15 South
Cliff Avenue to 43 Royal Parade.

REPORT OF Neil Holdsworth Specialist Advisor
(Planning)
WARDS All (of particular relevance to Devonshire

and Meads Wards.

PURPOSE This report provides a summary of the in-situ
window type/material and planning history
for the seafront facing properties

CONTACT Neil Holdsworth
Neil.holdsworth@eastbourne.gov.uk
01323 415 845

RECOMMENDATION That Members note the content of this report

Background

This report has been complied at the request of Members of Conservation
Area Advisory Committee in order establish a factual baseline for the
prevalence of non traditional windows along the seafront.

This baseline data is a material consideration in the determination of
future planning and listed building consent applications.

Introduction

1. This survey comprises an analysis of the materials and design of the
windows within the buildings along the Eastbourne Seafront. The
area of the study follows the boundary of the Town Centre and
Seafront Conservation Area, with all properties that directly face on
to the seafront surveyed. It seeks to identify and evaluate the
extent of alteration that has already taken place to the original
timber sash windows in the survey area, and identifies the relevant
recent planning decisions by the Council and the planning
inspectorate on this matter.

Page 1 of 6

Page 7


mailto:Neil.holdsworth@eastbourne.gov.uk

2. The survey was undertaken in November 2015 (area to the east of
the Pier) and March 2016 (area to the west of the Pier), based on a
visual inspection of the front elevations of the building from street
level, and on the basis of a review of property history information
held within the the Council’s electronic record. No internal
inspection of any of the buildings was carried out.

3. A total of 66 properties were surveyed. The area of the survey
extends from the western boundary of the Town Centre and
Seafront Conservation Area at South Cliff Avenue, to the Langham
Hotel, 43-49 Royal Parade. This is read as the last traditional hotel
building on the eastern seafront, and the end of the seafront
promenade. Appendix 1 sets out a description of each property,
with comments on the current windows based on the visual survey,
and a summary of the relevant planning history for each property.
Photos of the relevant buildings are set out in Appendix 2.

4. Within the survey area there are a total of six buildings that are
distinctively modern in character and have been clearly identified as
such in the schedule in appendix 1. These buildings have windows
that are constructed with modern materials, reflecting their original
contemporary design. They are excluded from the analysis below,
as they are not considered to be relevant to this assessment.

5. Within the survey area there are a total of ten listed buildings, nine
of which are grade 2 listed, and two of which are grade 2* listed
(numbers 29, 30, 31, 38, 39 and 53, 54, 55, 56, and 57 on the
schedule). These are included within the analysis as they make an
important contribution to the wider townscape character of the
survey area. Any alteration to the windows of these buildings
requires listed building consent, which invokes a more stringent
regime in respect of any alterations to the properties in question.

Extent of alteration

6. Table 1 below sets out all the buildings within the area and assesses
the degree of alteration that has taken place to the buildings in
guestion. A distinction is made between modern UPVC windows, and
imitation UPVC sash windows, the latter replicating the design of
the original timber windows albeit being made out of UPVC.

7. It can be seen from table 1 that a majority (55%) of buildings along
the seafront either have the original timber sash windows or a clear
majority of timber windows remaining on their front elevations. This
figure rises to 68.5%%, when buildings with replica sash UPVC
windows are included in this assessment.

Page 2 of 6

Page 8



Table 1 - Degree of alteration to buildings within survey

area.

Degree of alteration Unlisted traditional | Listed Total
building building
Original timber windows or |12,16,17,20,22,32 |29,38,3 | 21/60
like for like timber ,33,40,41,44,45,4 |9,53,54, | (35%)
replacements. 6,47, (13) 55,56,5
7 (8)
A clear majority of timber 1,24,28,34,35,59, 12/60
windows, with some 60,61,63,64,65,66 (20%)
modern PVC replacements (12)
A mixture of timber and 3,4,11,23, (4) 31 (1) 5/60
UPVC windows (8.5%)
A majority of windows being | 10,21,25,30,42,43 | 1 8/60
replica UPVC windows in ,49 (7) (13.5 %)
Sash design
A majority of windows being | 2,5,6,7,8,13,14,26 14/60
Modern UPVC windows ,37,48,50,51,52,6 (23%)
2

8. Furthermore, there is a cluster of buildings with modern UPVC
windows at the western extreme of the seafront along South CIiff
(numbers 2, 5, 6, 7 and 8 on the property schedule). If the
properties on South Cliff are excluded from the analysis (numbers
1-10), the figure of buildings that retain their original window
design along the seafront would rise to over 75%.

9. Planning permission is not required for a like for like replacement of
timber windows where the materials and design replicates those
that it replaces. Eight buildings have modern sash windows which
appear to be UPVC in terms of the materials they used, but replicate
the original design of the sash windows they replaced. As Table 2
shows, on several occasions such an approach has been authorised
by the Council in planning decisions, where a planning application
has been submitted in support of the alterations.

Table 2. Planning records for replica UPVC sash windows.

Imitation sash windows

Total nhumber (%)

Planning permission approved

21, 25, 49

Planning permission refused but

overturned at appeal

10

No record of planning permission

30, 40, 42, 43, 30

Page 3 of 6

Page 9




10. Fourteen Buildings are considered to have entirely modern
(non-sash design) UPVC windows. In these cases the windows do
not retain any traditional features, and the windows have entirely
modern features. Of these buildings, only one has been explicitly
granted planning permission on the basis of the records that have
been reviewed. This is the Landsdowne Hotel (number 13), and the
permission for the UPVC windows to be constructed on the front
elevation dates back to 1991.

11. In the case of the East Beach Hotel (number 62), the
windows that have been installed are not authorised and the Council
are currently taking enforcement action to require their replacement
with timber sash windows reflecting the original design.

12. The remaining modern PVC windows do not appear to benefit
from planning permission. However, under planning law physical
alterations to unlisted buildings including the replacement of
windows become lawful after a period of four years. It is possible
therefore that the windows in question are lawful as a consequence
of their age. In the event that the properties are in use as single
family dwellings, the installation of modern UPVC windows could
have been undertaken under ‘permitted development’ rights.

Decisions and Precedents

13. The Council have considered the issue of UPVC as a material
for window frames on seafront buildings on a humber of occasions
over the past thirty years, where it has been able to exercise
planning control regarding the windows in question. A summary of
the key relevant decisions, in chronological order by date, is set out
in table 3. The planning history is considered to demonstrate that
the Council has taken a generally consistent view towards the issue,
with a clear preference towards the retention of either timber sash
windows, or UPVC sliding sash replicas.

Conclusions
14. The survey demonstrates that there remains a very clear
pattern of traditional window design within the buildings along the
seafront of Eastbourne. A significant majority of buildings retain

their original sash window design, and over half appeared on the
basis of the survey to be made from timber.

Page 4 of 6

Page 10



Table 3. Key Planning Decisions.

Year Number Decision Comment
1989 West Rocks | Refusal of Decision to refuse planning
Hotel proposal for permission for replacement
PVC windows UPVC windows upheld at appeal
1987 - | Landsdowne | Approval for Only partial data available -
2001 Hotel. replacement Officers report from 1999
UPVC windows indicates that replacement
at Landsdowne | windows to this building were
Hotel. originally agreed in 1987.
2000 13 South Retrospective Officers report comments that
Cliff permission permission was granted as all
granted for the other windows on the
Modern UPVC building had been changed to
window. UPVC at the time of the
application.
2003 31 Marine Permission for The Council granted permission
Parade replacement for UPVC windows in a replica
UPVC windows sash style as requested by
granted. officers in the course of the
application.
2004 Albany Permission 2004 decision regularised UPVC
Hotel. granted for replacement windows that had
retention of PVC | been installed at the property.
replica sash
windows.
2010 Chatsworth | Retrospective Application was invited by
Hotel application to Council in context of
retain UPVC enforcement action. No action
sash windows at | was taken regarding the UPVC
first to third windows that had been installed
floor level at lower ground floor level.
approved.
2011 6 South Imitation Sash Decision to refuse application for
Cliff windows replacement PVC sash windows
refused. overturned at appeal.
2013 2-3 South Imitation Sash Decision to refuse application for
Cliff windows replacement PVC sash windows
refused. overturned at appeal.
2014 Claremont Listed building Appeal was dismissed on main
Hotel. enforcement issues, inspector found that the
notice requiring | UPVC imitation sash windows
removal of unacceptable on main frontage
Imitation UPVC | of a grade 2* listed building.
windows.
Page 5 of 6

Page 11




15. On the basis of the information reviewed, the planning
authority have maintained a consistent position that any
replacement windows that are to be installed on the seafront should
either be made from timber or in some circumstances UPVC, and in
all cases closely replicate the original sliding sash window design.
This general position has been supported by the planning
inspectorate whenever the matter has been considered at appeal.

Neil Holdsworth
14/03/2016
Appendices

Appendix 1 - Full survey of properties along seafront, including planning
history, and comments on existing windows.

Appendix 2 - Pictures of individual buildings along seafront.

Appendix 3 - Key Relevant appeal decisions

Page 6 of 6

Page 12



¢l abed

Appendix 1

Full survey of relevant seafront properties.

Premises

Relevant planning permissions

Existing window type

1 14-15 South Cliff

None relevant

All windows on the front elevation of the building are
timber painted white sash windows, there is one UPVC
door on the front elevation.

2 12- 13 South Cliff

EB/2005/0789 — Retrospective application for replacement
windows — refused.

EB/2000/0621 — approval for retrospective retention of UPVC
windows at ground floor level.

Replacement UPVC windows, some are generic modern
style some are imitation sash. Modern UPVC front
door.. One remaining original timber window a top floor
level

3 11 South Cliff

None relevant

(West side) Timber sash windows at ground and lower
ground floor level. Modern UPVC windows at first,
second and third floor level.

(East side) Timber sash windows at lower ground floor
level. UPVC at ground and first floor level. Timber sash
windows at second floor level. Mixture of timber and
UPVC at third floor level.

4 10 South Cliff

None relevant

Timber sash windows at lower ground floor level.
Modern UPVC windows at ground and first floor level.
Timber sash windows at second floor level.

5 9 South Cliff

None relevant

Modern UPVC windows at lower ground, ground, first
and second floor level

6 8 South Cliff

None relevant

Halycon Hotel — Modern UPVC windows at lower
ground, ground, first, second and third floor level.

7 7 South Cliff

None relevant

Modern UPVC windows from ground to third floor level.

8 6 South Cliff

EB/2011/0705 — replacement UPVC window allowed at appeal
(retrospective, first floor flat)

All UPVC windows. Imitation sash windows at first and
second floor levels. Modern UPVC windows at lower
ground, ground and first floor level.




y| ebed

9 Regency Court,4-5 None relevant Modern building with UPVC windows.
South CIiff.
10 | Beverley Court 2-3 130424 — Appeal allowed for replacement of PVCU framed Lower Ground to second floor level imitation PVC sash
South Cliff windows windows. Modern UPVC windows at third floor level.
11 | Ayra Court, South Cliff EB/2011/0599 — replacement UPVC windows allowed at appeal Lower ground floor level — UPVC windows.
Ground floor level — timber sash windows.
First and second floor — timber sash windows.
Third floor — Modern UPVC windows.

12 | Grand Hotel No relevant permissions for windows. Original timber sash windows installed at first to fourth
floor level. Some UPVC doors installed at ground floor
level.

13 | The Lansdowne Hote, EB/1991/0508 — approval of UPVC replacement windows Imitation UPVC windows at ground floor and lower

King Edwards Parade (FRONT) ground floor level. Some original timber sash windows
EB/1999/0547 — approval of UPVC replacement windows (REAR) remaining. Otherwise majority of windows are modern
EB/2001/0651 — approval of UPVC windows on five bays at upper | UPVC windows.
ground floor level.
EB/1999/0421 — approval of UPVC windows at ground and
basement level on front elevation. Modern UPVC windows
installed at first, second and third floor level on front elevation.
14 | 1-3 Lansdowne Terrace | EB/2008/0464 — rete ntion of x2 UPVC windows (in modern Modern UPVC windows in entire building.
extension) approved.
15 | Grand Court, King Modern building, Installation of replacement UPVC windows Modern Building — UPVC windows.’
Edwards Parade approved in 2005 EB/2005/0106
16 | Oban Hotel, King No relevant history Original timber sash windows on entire building.

Edwards Parade




G| abed

17 | Alexandra Hotel 1-2 No relevant history Original timber sash windows on entire building.
Kings Parade

18 | Devonshire Mansions Modern apartment complex constructed in 2003 — no relevant Modern building with UPVC windows
history.

19 | The View Hotel - no relevant history. 1970’s building with aluminium windows

20 | West Rocks Hotel EB/1989/0762 — application for PVC replacement windows Original timber sash windows.
refused and dismissed at appeal.

21 | Albany Lions Hotel EB/2004/0773 — Approval for retention of PVC windows and UPVC imitation sash windows at first to third floor level.
installation of imitation PVC windows — approved in 2004. Modern UPVC windows at ground and lower ground

floor level.
22 | Cavendish Hotel No record of explicit approvals relating to windows on front Timber windows at ground to fourth floor level. Some
elevation. Modern extension was granted in 1965 modern PVC patio doors at ground floor level.
(EB/1965/0195, EB/1965/0447).

23 | Cumberland Hotel None recent Variety of window types. Some original timber sash
windows at second and third floor level. Modern PVC
windows installed at first floor level and fourth floor
level. Imitation sash windows at ground floor level.
UPVC windows alongside original timber sash windows
at first, second, third and fourth floor on the side
elevation. UPVC installed at lower ground, ground and
part of first floor level.

24 | Mansion Hotel 32-35 EB/2008/0456, EB/2008/0457 — listed buiding notices in respect UPVC installed at ground floor level conservatory.

Grand Parade

of 15-18 Hartington Place. Subsequent listed building
enforcement notice — appeal dismissed (Grade 2 listed building)
Note: This is In respect of terrace to the rear, not the seafront
building itself.

Ground floor — 1x original timber sash window, 3 x
modern UPVC windows. Original timber sash windows
at second, third, fourth floor level.




9| ebed

25 | The Chatsworth, 29-31 EB2010/0700 — retrospective application allowed retention of Imitation sash UPVC windows at first to third floor level.
Grand Parade, UPVC windows at first, second and third floor level. Ground floor | Original timber sash windows at ground floor level.
Eastbourne timber windows must remain.

26 | Sovereign House, 25 EB/1993/0595, EB/1992/0370 — Original permissions for Modern UPVC windows throughout building.

Grand Parade. conversion of the building to residential use. No information
about what windows were approved at that time.

27 | Clive Court, 24 Grand Various permissions for replacement aluminium windows, eg Modern Building with aluminium windows.
Parade 141427, EB/1996/0348, EB/1997/0044.

28 | 252-268 Terminus Road | EB/1997/0153 — approved the change of use to flats. Originally At first to third floor level — timber sash windows. 1 x
(Harry ramsdens) proposed UPVC double glazed windows, committee report states | replacement UPVC window at first floor front.

that this was amended to delete this element of the proposals
following comments from CAAG.
29 | Burlington Hotel Listed building grade 2* (nos 5-23 Grand Parade) Aluminium Casement windows at Lower Ground floor
No relevant planning history (Belgian bistro — appear to be historic windows).
Original timber sash windows on remainder of the
building

30 | Claremont hotel 5-10 Grade 2* listed building — enforcement appeal decision March UPVC imitation windows at upper floor levels (currently
Grand Parade, 2014 required replacement of UPVC windows. Subsequent subject to enforcement action)

approvals: 141445 (allowed PCVU on rear elevation), 150142,
150667.

31 | Belle Vue Hotel (Now Listed Building grade 2 ‘Belle Vue hotel Miramar hotel and Mixture of original timber windows and UPVC

known as the Pier hotel) | Queen’s Mansions’ replacements, some opening outwards at ground floor
030215 — replace windows of bay with doors and fanlight over level, others slimline sash style.

32 | 1-3 Grand Parade None relevant Original timber sash windows

33 | Miramar Hotel, Marine None relevant Original timber sash windows
Garden (part of same
block as 1-3 Grand
Parade

34 | Queens Hotel None relevant Mostly original timbver sash windows, some UPVC




/| abed

fixtures and parts.

35 | 1-2 Marine Parade EB/2006/0066 approved a change of use to four flats, including Mixture of original timber sash windows and modern
PVCU windows to rear and ‘simulated sash’ windows to front PVCU windows at ground floor level, timber sash
dormers. Approved at committee. windows at upper floor levels.

36 | 3 Marine Parade None PVCU windows at ground floor level. Timber sash

(Marine Guest House) windows at upper level.

37 | 4-5 Marine Parade EB/2003/0136 authorised ‘replacement windows’. Plans state Tilt and turn PVCU windows on building with imitation
that windows are to be vertical sash style window frames, horns
condition on decision requires that the materials should match
those on the existing building. Not clear if this decision
authorised PVCU windows.

38 | 6 Marine Parade Listed Building Grade 2 Timber sash windows (listed building)

No relevant planning history

39 | 7 Marine Parade Listed Building Grade 2 Timber sash windows (listed building)
No relevant planning history

40 | 8-9 Marine Parade EB/2006/0074 — refused permission for UPVC windows on rear Timber casement windows on front elevation.
elevation on design and conservation grounds.

41 | 10 Marine Parade None Timber sliding sash windows with no horns, double

glazed replacements.
42 | 11 Marine Parade EB/1999/0212 — permission granted in 1999 for replacement Imitation sash style UPVC windows.
windows subject to condition that they are constructed from
timber
43 | 12 Marine Parade None UPVC Replicas
44 | 13-14 Marine Parade EB/2007/0875 — UPVC windows to rear elevation. Granted as it Timber sash windows on front elevation.
(Marine Parade Hotel) was at the rear.

45 | 20-26 Marine Parade Eb/2009/0037 — approved replacement timber sash windows. Timber sash windows tilt and turn imitiation style.
(former Travelodge)

46 | 27 Marine Parade None Timber sash windows

47 | 28 -29 Marine Parade 2005/0535 permitted bay window. Condition required detail of Either timber sash windows, or very close UPVC
(club Britannia) replacement window, no records of this being provided. replacements.

48 | 30 Marine Parade None Plastic/Aluminium windows

49 | 31 Marine Parade EB/2003/0005 - approved replacement UPVC windows subject to | UPVC imitation sash windows, as per planning approval.




gl ebed

amendments including design similar to traditional sliding sash
windows.

50 | 32 Marine Parade None UPVC or Aluminum windows

51 | 33 Marine Parade None UPVC imitation sash windows at ground floor level,
modern UPVC windows at first to third floor level.

52 | 34 Marine Parade None UPVC imitation sash windows at ground floor level,
modern UPVC windows at first to third floor level.

53 | 35 Marine Parade None relevant Timber — listed building

54 | 36 Marine Parade EB/1989/0062 — Listed building consent refused for replacement | Timber — listed building

windows.

55 | 37 Marine Parade None relevant Timber — listed building

56 | 38 Marine Parade None relevant Timber — listed building

57 | 39 Marine Parade None relevant Timber — listed building

58 | Metropole Apartments | None relevant Modern building — UPVC windows.

59 | 5-9 Royal Parade — None timber sash windows (possibly originals). Aluminium

Glastonbury Hotel framed conservatory at street level.

60 | 10-13 Royal Parade EB/1997/0472 — approval for conservatory at ground floor level. | Timber sash windows (possibly originals) from first to
third floor level. Conservatories facing ground floor
level, various materials (timber, plastic and aluminium).

61 | 14-22 Royal Parade None relevant Timber sash windows (possibly original) from first to
third floor level. At ground floor level 1x conservatory.
Some timber framed windows (possibly originals).
Doors of various designs and fenestration.

62 | 23-25 Royal Parade 2015 refusal. UPVC replacement windows — subject of current

(East beach hotel) enforcement action and retrospective application.

63 | 26-34 Royal Parade None Relevant Timber sash windows (possibly original) from first to

third floor level. UPVC conservatory spanning five
buildings at ground floor level. Small infill area between
29 and 31, possibly non-original comprising UPVC




6l abed

windows.

64

35-38 Royal Parade

None Relevant

Timber sash windows (possibly original) from first to
third floor level. UPVC conservatory spanning four
buildings at ground floor level. Small infill area between
38 and 39, possibly non-original comprising aluminium
casement window at fourth floor level, other levels
infilled.

65

39-42 Royal Parade.

None relevant

Timber sash windows (possibly original) from first to
third floor level. Aluminum conservatory at ground floor
level.

66

43-49 Royal Parade
(Langham hotel)

EB/2010/0213 — approved UPVC sash style windows on rear
elevation. EB/2012/0723 — Approved UPVC conservatory

Combination of original timber windows and timber
double glazed replacements in similar style. UPVC
conservatory at part ground floor level.




This page is intentionally left blank



LZ abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

APPENDIX 2 — PHOTOGRAPHIC SURVEY

1

14-15
South Cliff

None relevant

All windows on the front elevation of the building are timber painted white sash windows, there is one UPVC door on
the front elevation.

Page 1 of 63




Z22Z 9bed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

12- 13 South Cliff

EB/2005/0789 — Retrospective application for replacement
windows — refused.

EB/2000/0621 — approval for retrospective retention of UPVC
windows at ground floor level.

Replacement UPVC windows, some are generic modern
style some are imitation sash. Modern UPVC front
door.. One remaining original timber window a top floor
level

!mw Wil

Page 2 of 63




ez abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

11 South Cliff

None relevant (West side) Timber sash windows at ground and lower ground floor level. Modern UPVC windows
at first, second and third floor level.

(East side) Timber sash windows at lower ground floor level. UPVC at ground and first floor level.
Timber sash windows at second floor level. Mixture of timber and UPVC at third floor level.

-y

’ »mqu ' (.

Al
L
i i

Page 3 of 63



yZ ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

Timber sash windows at lower ground floor level.

10 South Cliff

None relevant

Modern UPVC windows at ground and first floor level.
Timber sash windows at second floor level.

—

-

LT
R s -

"

U ARNRARARARDSC |
LB MR vt

A

1
|
|
p—

|
A

Page 4 of 63



Gz abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

9 South Cliff

None relevant

Modern UPVC windows at lower ground, ground, first
and second floor level

Page 5 of 63




9z ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

8 South Cliff

None relevant

Halycon Hotel — Modern UPVC windows at lower
ground, ground, first, second and third floor level.

Page 6 of 63




JZ abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

| 7

| 7 South Cliff

None relevant

| Modern UPVC windows from ground to third floor level. |

Page 7 of 63



gz obed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

6 South Cliff

EB/2011/0705 — replacement UPVC window allowed at appeal
(retrospective, first floor flat)

All UPVC windows. Imitation sash windows at first and
second floor levels. Modern UPVC windows at lower
ground, ground and first floor level.

Page 8 of 63




6¢C abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

Regency Court,4-5
South Cliff.

None relevant

Modern building with UPVC windows.

Page 9 of 63

W




0¢ abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

10

Beverley Court 2-3
South Cliff

130424 — Appeal allowed for replacement of PVCU framed
windows

Lower Ground to second floor level imitation PVC sash
windows. Modern UPVC windows at third floor level.

Page 10 of 63




Le abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

11

Ayra Court, South Cliff

EB/2011/0599 — replacement UPVC windows allowed at appeal

Lower ground floor level — UPVC windows.
Ground floor level — timber sash windows.
First and second floor — timber sash windows.
Third floor — Modern UPVC windows.

Page 11 of 63




Z2¢ obed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

12

Grand Hotel

No relevant permissions for windows.

Original timber sash windows installed at first to fourth
floor level. Some UPVC doors installed at ground floor
level.

Page 12 of 63

st Ih




¢ abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

13

The Lansdowne Hote,
King Edwards Parade

EB/1991/0508 — approval of UPVC replacement windows
(FRONT)

EB/1999/0547 — approval of UPVC replacement windows (REAR)
EB/2001/0651 — approval of UPVC windows on five bays at upper
ground floor level.

EB/1999/0421 — approval of UPVC windows at ground and
basement level on front elevation. Modern UPVC windows
installed at first, second and third floor level on front elevation.

Imitation UPVC windows at ground floor and lower
ground floor level. Some original timber sash windows
remaining. Otherwise majority of windows are modern
UPVC windows.

Page 13 of 63




y¢ ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

14

1-3 Lansdowne Terrace

EB/2008/0464 — retention of x2 UPVC windows (in modern
extension) approved.

Modern UPVC windows in entire building.

Page 14 of 63




G¢ abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

15

Grand Court, King
Edwards Parade

Modern building, Installation of replacement UPVC windows
approved in 2005 EB/2005/0106

Modern Building — UPVC windows

Page 15 of 63




o¢ abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

16

Oban Hotel, King
Edwards Parade

No relevant history

Original timber sash windows on entire building.

Page 16 of 63




/€ abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

Alexandra Hotel 1-2
Kings Parade

No relevant history

Page 17 of 63

Original timber sash windows on entire building.




8¢ abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

18

Devonshire Mansions

Modern apartment complex constructed in 2003 — no relevant
history.

Modern building with UPVC windows

Page 18 of 63




6¢ abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

19

The View Hotel -

no relevant history.

1970’s building with aluminium windows

Page 19 of 63




0 ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

20

West Rocks Hotel

EB/1989/0762 — application for PVC replacement windows
refused and dismissed at appeal.

Original timber sash windows.

Page 20 of 63




Ly abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

21

Albany Lions Hotel

EB/2004/0773 — Approval for retention of PVC windows and
installation of imitation PVC windows — approved in 2004.

UPVC imitation sash windows at first to third floor level.
Modern UPVC windows at ground and lower ground
floor level.

Page 21 of 63




Zb ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

22

Cavendish Hotel

No record of explicit approvals relating to windows on front
elevation. Modern extension was granted in 1965
(EB/1965/0195, EB/1965/0447).

Timber windows at ground to fourth floor level. Some
modern PVC patio doors at ground floor level.

F = &

C TN == S
|
|
|
e —— 20
=

|

,?l i [

|

Page 22 of 63




¢ abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

23

Cumberland Hotel

None recent

Variety of window types. Some original timber sash windows at second and third floor level. Modern
PVC windows installed at first floor level and fourth floor level. Imitation sash windows at ground floor
level. UPVC windows alongside original timber sash windows at first, second, third and fourth floor on
the side elevation. UPVC installed at lower ground, ground and part of first floor level.

Page 23 of 63




¥ ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

24

Mansion Hotel 32-35
Grand Parade

EB/2008/0456, EB/2008/0457 — listed buiding notices in respect
of 15-18 Hartington Place. Subsequent listed building
enforcement notice — appeal dismissed (Grade 2 listed building)
Note: This is In respect of terrace to the rear, not the seafront
building itself.

UPVC installed at ground floor level conservatory.
Ground floor — 1x original timber sash window, 3 x
modern UPVC windows. Original timber sash windows
at second, third, fourth floor level.

Page 24 of 63




G abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

25

The Chatsworth, 29-31
Grand Parade,
Eastbourne

EB2010/0700 — retrospective application allowed retention of
UPVC windows at first, second and third floor level. Ground floor
timber windows must remain.

Imitation sash UPVC windows at first to third floor level.
Original timber sash windows at ground floor level.

Page 25 of 63




o ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

26

Sovereign House, 25
Grand Parade.

EB/1993/0595, EB/1992/0370 — Original permissions for
conversion of the building to residential use. No information
about what windows were approved at that time.

Modern UPVC windows throughout building.

Page 26 of 63




/v ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

27

Clive Court, 24 Grand
Parade

Various permissions for replacement aluminium windows, eg
141427, EB/1996/0348, EB/1997/0044.

Modern Building with aluminium windows.

Page 27 of 63




g ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

28

252-268 Terminus Road
(Harry ramsdens)

EB/1997/0153 — approved the change of use to flats. Originally
proposed UPVC double glazed windows, committee report states
that this was amended to delete this element of the proposals
following comments from CAAG.

At first to third floor level — timber sash windows. 1 x
replacement UPVC window at first floor front.

Page 28 of 63




61 abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

29

Burlington Hotel

Listed building grade 2* (nos 5-23 Grand Parade)
No relevant planning history

Aluminium Casement windows at Lower Ground floor
(Belgian bistro — appear to be historic windows).
Original timber sash windows on remainder of the
building

Page 29 of 63




0G abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

30

Claremont hotel 5-10
Grand Parade,

Grade 2* listed building — enforcement appeal decision March
2014 required replacement of UPVC windows. Subsequent
approvals: 141445 (allowed PCVU on rear elevation), 150142,
150667.

UPVC imitation windows at upper floor levels (currently
subject to enforcement action)

Page 30 of 63




LG abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

31

Belle Vue Hotel (Now
known as the Pier hotel)

Listed Building grade 2 ‘Belle Vue hotel Miramar hotel and
Queen’s Mansions’

Mixture of original timber windows and UPVC
replacements, some opening outwards at ground floor

030215 — replace windows of bay with doors and fanlight over level, others slimline sash style.

==
2

@
| iR
= -

nmn F

"!!Illlll"“ll

THE ] i:R HOTE

Page 31 of 63

L

mH

______f_,

= 1*1

H||5




26 obed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

32

1-3 Grand Parade

None relevant

Original timber sash windows

33

Miramar Hotel, Marine
Garden (part of same
block as 1-3 Grand
Parade

None relevant

Original timber sash windows

Page 32 of 63




eG abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

34

Queens Hotel

None relevant

Mostly original timbver sash windows, some UPVC
fixtures and parts.

Page 33 of 63




G ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

35

1-2 Marine Parade

EB/2006/0066 approved a change of use to four flats, including
PVCU windows to rear and ‘simulated sash’ windows to front
dormers. Approved at committee.

Mixture of original timber sash windows and modern
PVCU windows at ground floor level, timber sash
windows at upper floor levels.

Page 34 of 63




GG abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

36

3 Marine Parade
(Marine Guest House)

None

PVCU windows at ground floor level. Timber sash
windows at upper level.

Page 35 of 63




G abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

37

4-5 Marine Parade

EB/2003/0136 authorised ‘replacement windows’. Plans state
that windows are to be vertical sash style window frames,
condition on decision requires that the materials should match
those on the existing building. Not clear if this decision
authorised PVCU windows.

Tilt and turn PVCU windows on building with imitation
horns

Page 36 of 63




]G abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

38

6 Marine Parade

Listed Building Grade 2
No relevant planning history

Timber sash windows (listed building)

Page 37 of 63




G abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

39

7 Marine Parade

Listed Building Grade 2
No relevant planning history

Timber sash windows (listed building)

Page 38 of 63




6G abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

40

8-9 Marine Parade

EB/2006/0074 — refused permission for UPVC windows on rear
elevation on design and conservation grounds.

Timber casement windows on front elevation.

Page 39 of 63




09 abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

41 | 10 Marine Parade None Timber sliding sash windows with no horns, double
glazed replacements.
42 | 11 Marine Parade EB/1999/0212 — permission granted in 1999 for replacement Imitation sash style UPVC windows.

windows subject to condition that they are constructed from
timber

Page 40 of 63




L9 abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

| 43 | 12 Marine Parade

None

| UPVC Replicas

Page 41 of 63




29 abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

44

13-14 Marine Parade
(Marine Parade Hotel)

EB/2007/0875 — UPVC windows to rear elevation. Granted as it
was at the rear.

Timber sash windows on front elevation.

Page 42 of 63




€9 abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

45

20-26 Marine Parade
(former Travelodge)

Eb/2009/0037 — approved replacement timber sash windows.

Timber sash windows tilt and turn imitiation style.

Page 43 of 63




9 ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

| 46 | 27 Marine Parade

None

| Timber sash windows

Page 44 of 63



Go abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

47

28 -29 Marine Parade
(club Britannia)

2005/0535 permitted bay window. Condition required detail of
replacement window, no records of this being provided.

Either timber sash windows, or very close UPVC
replacements.

Page 45 of 63




99 abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

| 48 | 30 Marine Parade

None

| Plastic/Aluminium windows

iy .}-'il\l',_
Yalsls

CAPPUCCINO BAR

Page 46 of 63



/9 abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

49

31 Marine Parade

EB/2003/0005 - approved replacement UPVC windows subject to
amendments including design similar to traditional sliding sash
windows.

UPVC imitation sash windows, as per planning approval.

T A T
‘ (il e ol WX

Page 47 of 63




g9 abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

| 50 | 32 Marine Parade

None

| UPVC or Aluminum windows

Page 48 of 63




69 abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

51

33 Marine Parade

None

UPVC imitation sash windows at ground floor level,
modern UPVC windows at first to third floor level.

Page 49 of 63




0/ ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

52

34 Marine Parade

None

UPVC imitation sash windows at ground floor level,
modern UPVC windows at first to third floor level.

Page 50 of 63




L/ abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

| 53 | 35 Marine Parade

None relevant | Timber — listed building

Page 51 of 63



Z/. ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

54

36 Marine Parade

EB/1989/0062 — Listed building consent refused for replacement
windows.

Timber — listed building

Page 52 of 63




¢) abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

| 55 | 37 Marine Parade

None relevant

| Timber - listed building

Page 53 of 63



¥/ ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

56

38 Marine Parade

None relevant

Timber — listed building

57

39 Marine Parade

None relevant

Timber — listed building

Page 54 of 63




G/ abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

| 58 | Metropole Apartments | None relevant

| Modern building — UPVC windows.

Page 55 of 63




9/ ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

59

5-9 Royal Parade —
Glastonbury Hotel

None

timber sash windows (possibly originals). Aluminium
framed conservatory at street level.

AL I =] e e
CERSIRIN ey hvlNINnlnuu‘a:H»ICN'R‘(VH‘

WRTRTTY W
I mmmimtumm..nmumuuu;mmmmammmmuu'.\

Sl | T
Mﬂl

' GLAST
b H

ONBURY }
TEL

Page 56 of 63

mm“umuuu»;m.s,um.;-m...m.




]/ abed

60

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

10-13 Royal Parade

EB/1997/0472 — approval for conservatory at ground floor level.

Timber sash windows (possibly originals) from first to
third floor level. Conservatories facing ground floor
level, various materials (timber, plastic and aluminium).

_—
L ——

¥
§ |

e e e e At o e bl
s oy o PR OO O TR

/f_ Mick Haynes & Sons

Flat Roofing Specialist

Ringmer | Lewes
!

Page 57 of 63

Vi

1‘ll““J }




g/ ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

61

14-22 Royal Parade

None relevant

Timber sash windows (possibly original) from first to third floor level. At ground floor level 1x

conservatory. Some timber framed windows (possibly originals). Doors of various designs and
fenestration.

Wk W

lI
(]

=N
—

3
i)
B
o ()
o

Page 58 of 63




6/ abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

62

23-25 Royal Parade
(East beach hotel)

2015 refusal.

UPVC replacement windows — subject of current
enforcement action and retrospective application.

Page 59 of 63




0g ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

63

26-34 Royal Parade

None Relevant

Timber sash windows (possibly original) from first to third floor level. UPVC conservatory spanning five
buildings at ground floor level. Small infill area between 29 and 31, possibly non-original comprising
UPVC windows.

- mE ==

Page 60 of 63




Lg abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

64

35-38 Royal Parade

None Relevant

Timber sash windows (possibly original) from first to third floor level. UPVC conservatory spanning four
buildings at ground floor level. Small infill area between 38 and 39, possibly non-original comprising
aluminium casement window at fourth floor level, other levels infilled.

Page 61 of 63




28 ebed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

65

39-42 Royal Parade.

None relevant

Timber sash windows (possibly original) from first to
third floor level. Aluminum conservatory at ground floor
level.

Page 62 of 63




g abed

Appendix 2 - Full Photographic survey

66

43-49 Royal Parade
(Langham hotel)

EB/2010/0213 — approved UPVC sash style windows on rear
elevation. EB/2012/0723 — Approved UPVC conservatory

Combination of original timber windows and timber
double glazed replacements in similar style. UPVC
conservatory at part ground floor level.

Page 63 of 63




This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3

EASTBOURNE BOROUGH COUNCIL

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT, 1971

Refusal of Permission to Develop Land
K Sayers, Esq., C/o John D Clarke & Son, F.R.I.B.A.,

.......................................................

.......................................................

........................

IN pursuance of their powers under the above Act the Council as Local Planning Authority
hereby refuse permission to dev land in accordance with the proposals set out in your application
dated ....... %éril‘?siapﬂa.r:? 155)8 ................ and shown on the plan(s) submitted therewith.

THE reasons for the Council’s decisions to refuse permission for the development are:-

Reasons for Refusal

T?at thg replacement of existing windows on the south~west and south-east elevations
with nof~traditional frames would be detrimental to the appearance of the building y
and to the terrace of which it forms part, and would detract from the appearance

.. and chagacter of the Town Centre and Seafront Conservation Area in which it is
situated. ‘

THE Applicant should read the notes on the back of this form.

Copies of the plan(s) and appiication-form are returned herewith,

2
Dated this ..........0civiiiiiiiiinnan.. day of Februar ....... 19.90..
Form T.P.13 Refusal of Permission. ~ f......... f!:3~ g" ..... g TR
Director of Planning and Technical Services
T8.13




NOTES
TOWN AND COU‘NTRY PLAN'NING ACT 1971

]

Appeals to the Secretary of State

® If you are aggrieved by the decision of your local planning authority to refuse permission for the
proposéd development or to grant it subject to conditions, then you can appeal ‘to the: Secretary
of State for the Environment under section 36 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1971.
ou must do so within six months of the date of this notice, using

® If you want to appeal, then
Ay 3 he Department of the Environment at Tollgate House, Houlton .

a form which you can ﬁet from t
Street, Bristol BS2 9DJ.

® The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but he will not
normally be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the
delay in giving notice of appeal.

®  The Secretary of State need not consider an :}ppcal if it seems to him that the Jocal glanning authority
could not have granted planning permisston for the proposed development or could not have granted

it without the conditions it imposed, having regard to the statutory requirements, to the provisions
of the development order and to any dircctions given under the order.

® In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely because the local authority
based its decision on a direction given by him.

@

Purchase Notices

® Ifeither the local planning authority or the Secretary of State for the Environment refuses permis-
sion to develop land or %rants it subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither
put the land to a reasonably beneficial use in its existing state nor can he render the land capable
of a reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would

be permitted.

® [Inthese’circumstances, the owner may serve a purchase notice on the Council (District Council,
London Borough Council or Common Council of the City of London) in whose area the land is
situated. This notice wili require the Council to purchase his interest in the land in accordance
with the provisions of Part IX of the Town and Country Planning Act 1971.

Compensation

® In certain circumstances compensation may be claimed from the local planning authority if per-
mission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State on appeal or on reference
of the application to him.

@ These circumstances are set out in sections 169 and related provisjons of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1971,




Zsn PR

Planning Inspectorate A
Department of the Environment ' EBC. KA
Room 141TToligale House Houlton Street Bristol BS2 8DJ RECENVED _ﬁr}
Telex 449321 ‘ Direct Line 0272-218 927 y
Switchboard 0272-218811 -8 N{V 1990 :
GTN 1374 TN PLANNING

L3 YA 1]

Your reference DIRELr 1 U e NOES __j

John D Clarke and Son FRIBA TECHHCAL i

2 West Terrace > |

EASTBOURNE Our reference ﬂ/g?/l?éz .
East Sussex T/APP/T1410/A/90/154327/P8

BN21 4QX Date .7 NOY 90

Gentlemen

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990, SECTION 78 AND SCHEDULE 6
APPEAL BY KENNETH SAYERS
APPLICATION NO: EB/89/762 —]

1!9 1. I have been appointed by the Secretary of State for the Environment to determine
the above mentioned appeal. This appeal is against the decision of the Eastbourne
Borough Councll to refuse planning permission for replacement UPVC vertical sliding
windows to south-east and south-west elevations of West Rocks Hotel, 44-46 Grand Parade,
Eastbourne, East Sussex. I have considered the written representations made by
you and by the Council. I inspected the site on 16 October 1990.

2, From my inspection of the site and its surroundings and from consideration
of the representations received and bearing in mind Section 72(1) of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 I consider the main issue is
whether the proposal would preserve or enhance the character and appearance of
the Conservation Area.

3.. West Rocks Hotel is located on the corner of Grand Parade and Howard Square
having frontages to both. The hotel comprises 5 storey plus a basement and un
the Grand Parade frontage forms part of a continuous terrace between Burlington Flace
and Howard Sguare and is within the Town Centre and Seafront Conservation Area
designated in 1969. On the north-eastern side of Howard Square separated by a
narrow gap from the West Rocks Hotel are a terrace of properties of similar style

@; which are Grade II listed buildings dating from 1874.

4, The proposal is to replace all the exlsting windows on the south-east and
south-west principle elevations which are predominantly timber vertical sliding
sashes of traditional design by UPVC vertical sliding sashes and this proposal

has been rejected by the Council as it considers that this would be detrimental

to the appearance of the building and the terrace of which it forms part and would
detract from the appearance and character of the Conservation Area in which it

is situated.

5. In its representations the Council submit that the proposed replacement windows
would be objectionable as the appearance of UPVC windows carnot replate the detailed
appearance of timber windows and in particular the dimensiors of the frame, treatment
of vertical glazing bars and lack of traditional features such as decorative horns

on the bottom rail of upper sashes. It 1s also submitted bhat the detrimental
effects of the proposals would not be restricted to the appeal building i1tself

as the windows would be seen as part of a terrace on the seafront side and in

Howard Square would contrast with the original timber sashes in the listed buildings
adjacent.

100%

@ Page 87 1

RECYCLED PAPER




6. The Council refer to Circular 8/87 (Historic Buildings and Conservation Areas -
Policy and Proceedurs paragraph 5 and Appendix IY which refers to alterations

to listed buildings including the advice "The tendency to use non-traditional fenestra-
tion in elevations of value should be resisted and replacement windows in UFVC

are almost always unacceptable" and submlt that whilst the appeal property is not
listed it is considered that it has elevations of value within the Conservation

Area.

7. On behalf of the appellant it is submitted that the existing timber vertical
sliding sashes are in need of considerable repair many being 1ll-fitting and draughty
and that the efficiency of windows is more important than it has been in the past.
That the owner of the hotel is sensitive to maintaining the quality of the building
and proposes top grade UPVC windows of the vetical sliding type which would maintain
the existing profiles and appearance. FPhotographs of other properties within the
Conservation Area show examples where UPVC replacement windows mainly of the tilt

and turn type have been used. It is also submitted that replecement timber windows
would not be as efficient as the proposals put forward even if modern draught seals
were fitted.

8. Having visited the site and noted the representations of both parties I am
of the opinion that West Rooks Hotel which is typlcal of a large proportion of
the Victorian Hotels facing the seafront on Grand Parade is both attractive in
appearance and occuples a very prominent position adjacent to the Junction with
Howard Square and that any alaterations should be of a design which respects the
traditional appearance of the building. It .is my view that the use in a bullding
of this character of UPVC replacement windows, a non traditional material,would
not retain the traditional joinery details which are a feature of such bulldings
and would therefore be damaging to the appearance of the building and the Conservation
Area in which it is located and would neither preserve nor enhance the character
and appearance of the latter.

9. I have taken into account all the other matters raised in the representations
and viewed most of the bulldings illustrated in the photographs annexed to the
appeal documents but they are insufficient to outweigh the considerations wrich
have led to my decision.

10. For the above reasons, and in exercise of the powers transferred to me, L.
hereby dismiss this appeal.

I am Gentlemen
Your chedient Servant

JOHN A LITTLE FRIBA MRTPI
Inspector

2F

Page 88




The Planning

‘ Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 26 April 2012

by R P E Mellor BSc DipTRP DipDesBEnv DMS MRICS MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 13 June 2012

Appeal Ref: APP/T1410/A/11/2167721
Flat 6, Arya Court, 1 South Cliff, Eastbourne BN20 7AE

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

The appeal is made by Mr N Hedges against the decision of Eastbourne Borough
Council.

The application Ref EB/2011/0599(HH), dated 6 October 2011, was refused by notice
dated 6 December 2011.

The development proposed is described on the planning application as ‘Replacement
windows to front and rear’.

Decision

1.

The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for replacement UPVC
windows to front and side at Flat 6, Arya Court, 1 South Cliff, Eastbourne BN20
7AE in accordance with the terms of the application, Ref EB/2011/0599(HH),
dated 6 October 2011, subject to the following conditions:

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years
from the date of this decision.

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans: Drawing 1.

3)  All the windows to be installed shall be sash windows with dimensions
and sections as close as possible to the existing timber windows and
finished with white frames.

Procedural Matters

2.

The appeal premises are part of a corner building divided into flats and with
frontages to South Cliff (south east) and also to Silverdale Road (nhorth east)
where the front door is located. The drawings identify the windows to be
replaced as those facing both roads. The window frames would be UPVC. The
proposal is described on the decision notice and appeal form as ‘Replacement
UPVC windows to front and rear’ and on the Design and Access Statement as
‘Replacement windows at front and side’. There are no drawings showing any
windows at the rear of the building which I take to be the south west elevation.
I have therefore determined the appeal on the basis of the following revised
description: ‘Replacement UPVC windows to front and side.’

Policy Context

3.

The property is located within the Town Centre and Seafront Conservation
Area. The development plan here includes the Eastbourne Borough Local Plan
2001-2011 (adopted 2003) (the LP). Policy UHT15 requires planning

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate

Page 89



Appeal Decision APP/T1410/A/11/2167721

applications in conservation areas to preserve or enhance the character or
appearance of the area. That reflects a statutory duty to have regard to such
matters.

4. The conservation area is a designated ‘heritage asset’ in the terms of Section
12 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) which seeks consideration
of the significance of the heritage asset and which attaches great weight to the
asset’s conservation. Substantial harm to the significance of a designated
heritage asset should not be permitted unless it is necessary to achieve
substantial public benefits.

5. NPPF paragraph 95 seeks that local planning authorities should ‘actively
support energy efficiency improvements to existing buildings’.

6. The Council has also drawn attention to the Eastbourne Townscape Guide
Supplementary Planning Guidance (2004) (the SPG). Guideline WD2 advises
that in conservation areas the Council will normally expect historic buildings to
retain the original design and material of their windows and doors but will allow
the use of alternative materials to an appropriate design on hidden elevations
and new buildings. The weight to be attached to this document is limited in
that it is guidance rather than adopted policy and because there is no
submitted evidence of public consultation in its preparation.

Main Issue

7. The main issue is considered to be the effect of the proposal on the character
and appearance of the building and the conservation area and whether any
identified harm may be outweighed by other benefits.

Reasons

8. The conservation area is extensive and includes a wide variety of development.
However the seafront including the appeal site is characterised mainly by multi-
storey late Victorian and Edwardian buildings with rendered and painted
facades and often with bay windows surrounded by moulded detailing. Most
are occupied as flats or hotels. There has also been some late 20" century
infill development which can detract from the area’s dominant character. Many
of the older buildings retain their original timber sash windows but there are
also a significant number of replacement windows in UPVC or aluminium.

Some windows are in styles that detract from the dominant architectural
character and appearance of the buildings and the conservation area. Itis
likely that some of these have been installed without a planning application.

9. Arya Court is a typical late 19""/early 20th century building with painted
moulded facades and large bay windows. The bay windows to the ground, first
and second floors (including the appeal premises) retain their original large
timber sashes painted white in a very simple plain style without glazing bars.
However all basement level windows have been replaced with white UPVC
windows in a different style that is out of character with the building. Their
wider visual impact is mitigated in that they are partially hidden below ground
level and behind shrubbery. All balcony doors on all floors (including at the
appeal flat) have also been replaced in UPVC or aluminium. All of the top floor
windows are modern replacements. Their original openings are of different
proportions from those of the bay windows on lower floors and they are
partially screened in the usual views from ground level. There is no evidence

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 2

Page 90



Appeal Decision APP/T1410/A/11/2167721

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

before me that planning permission has been granted for any of the above
replacement windows.

The building has also been extended along Silverdale Road and all of the many
windows in that extension are in aluminium or UPVC. However that self-
effacing extension reads as almost a separate more modern building and the
SPG does endorse alternative materials on such buildings.

In the main the replacement and modern windows at Arya Court retain the
simple symmetrical appearance of the original windows. Viewed as a whole the
original Arya Court building continues to make a mainly positive contribution to
the heritage significance and character of the conservation area.

To install replacement windows of a different pattern in the prominent existing
bays would risk undermining the historic architectural appearance and heritage
significance of the building and its positive contribution to the character of the
conservation area. However the very simple design and dimensions of the
existing windows are here capable of being closely replicated. Indeed the
application proposes to install double glazed sash windows with similar sections
to the existing sash timber windows. This can be the subject of planning
conditions. In these circumstances the appearance of the windows would be
little changed and not obvious to most observers, particularly in the usual
views from street level. Consequently there would be little or no harm to the
character of appearance of the building and conservation area or to the
heritage significance of the asset.

As the change may be just discernible there remains a slight risk that the
character and appearance of the conservation area would not be fully
preserved and hence there would be a literal conflict with LP Policy UHT15.
There would also be a literal conflict with the SPG Guideline WD2 in that the
window materials would change. However WD2 does allow for exceptions by
its use of the term ‘normally’. It is also a material consideration that the NPPF
supports energy efficiency improvements to existing buildings. The proposed
windows can be expected to achieve a significant improvement in energy
efficiency. It is concluded that the improved energy efficiency is a public
benefit that here outweighs the only slight risk of harm. There would also be
noise insulation benefits.

It is acknowledged that there may be other ways to achieve similar energy
efficiency and noise insulation aims, such as professionally draught-stripping
the existing windows and fitting secondary glazing. Secondary glazing would
be less convenient to the occupier because of the added difficulty of opening
and cleaning the windows. There would also be uncertain visual consequences
depending on the detailed design of the system and what may be visible from
the street. Nevertheless in other circumstances where traditional windows
would be more difficult to replicate then secondary glazing of suitable design
may be the only acceptable solution. However that is not the case here.

For the above reasons, and having regard to all other matters raised in
representations, it is concluded that the appeal should be allowed.

RPE Mellor

INSPECTOR

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 3

Page 91



The Planning
Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 1 October 2012

by David Harmston FRICS DipTP MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 17 October 2012

Appeal Ref: APP/T1410/A/12/2175277
Flat 2, 6 South Cliff, Eastbourne BN20 7AF

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr Norman Lee against the decision of Eastbourne Borough
Council.

e The application (Ref:- EB/2011/0705), dated 28 September 2011, was refused by
notice dated 9 February 2012.

e The development proposed is the replacement of windows with double glazed vertical
sliding sash units.

Decision

1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for replacement
windows with double glazed vertical sliding sash units at Flat 2, 6 South CIiff,
Eastbourne BN20 7AF in accordance with the terms of the application (Ref:-
EB/2011/0705), dated 28 September 2011.

Procedural Matters

2. The National Planning Policy Framework was published in March 2012. The
Council’s decision to refuse the application the subject of this appeal was
made just before that date. The Eastbourne Borough Plan (2001 - 2011) was
adopted in September 2003. In my opinion none of the policies relevant to this
development are inconsistent with the Framework and, in accordance with
paragraph 215, I have afforded them due weight in considering this appeal.

3. The site lies within the Town Centre and Seafront Conservation Area. Itis
therefore necessary to determine whether the development would serve to
preserve or enhance the character or appearance of that Area. In considering
this matter I have taken into account the Council’s Supplementary Planning
Guidance of July 2004 (SPG) - Eastbourne Townscape Guide.

Main Issue

4. The main issue in this appeal is the effect of the development on the character
and appearance of the area having regard to its Conservation Area location.

Reasons

5. The appeal property is a first floor flat within a four-storey period building
facing Eastbourne seafront. The development, which has already been

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate

Page 92



Appeal Decision APP/T1410/A/12/2175277

undertaken, is to replace four timber-framed windows situated within the front
elevation of the building with uPVC vertical sliding sash replacements. Three of
the windows make up a bay front whilst the fourth is a single unit to its side.

6. Within the front elevation of the property, other windows already have uPVC
replacements. Similarly, many of the adjoining and nearby buildings feature
uPVC replacement windows of varying profiles and styles. A modern, five-
storey block of flats exists to the east of the site. The terrace of period
buildings of which the appeal property is a part appears to be generally well
maintained retaining many original features with a high measure of
architectural integrity. The terrace contributes in a positive way to the
character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

7. Policy UHT1 of the Local Plan states that all new development should
harmonise with the appearance of the local environment respecting its
distinctiveness. Policy UHT15 relates to developments within Conservation
Areas requiring them to preserve or enhance their character or appearance.
Guideline WD2 of the SPG states that within Conservation Areas the
expectation is that historic buildings should retain their original design features
and materials in their windows and doors. Some styles of plastic replacement
windows may be acceptable in certain locations, for example on hidden
elevations. Where modern materials are acceptable, imitation glazing bars
should be avoided.?

8. The replacement windows which have been installed are well designed with an
acceptable profile and style and no glazing bars, respecting the appearance of
the windows which they have replaced. They match other similar
replacements within the immediate locality and are inconspicuous in the
context of the area and the building itself. In my view, and despite the use of
uPVC in their construction, the replacement windows serve to preserve the
character and appearance of the Conservation Area. They are visually
inoffensive and cause no material harm. Such conflict with the Local Plan and
the SPG as exists is outweighed by these considerations.

9. I have taken everything else into account including the views expressed by the
Council’s Historic Buildings Advisor. Nevertheless, my overall conclusion is that
the very small degree of harm that the development causes is acceptable
having regard to the weight of all considerations in its favour. No conditions
are necessary as the development has already been undertaken.

David Harmston

Inspector

! Supplementary Planning Guidance - Eastbourne Townscape Guide - Paragraph 8.5

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate

2

Page 93



* The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 24 March 2014

by Katie Peerless Dip Arch RIBA
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 4 April 2014

Appeal Ref: APP/T1410/F/12/2188806
Land at The Claremont Hotel, 5 - 10 Grand Parade, Eastbourne, East
Sussex BN21 3DD

e The appeal is made under section 39 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compensation Act 1991.

e The appeal is made by Mr Sheik Abid Gulzar against a listed building enforcement notice
issued by Eastbourne Borough Council.

e The Council's reference is ENF/2008/0287.

e The notice was issued on 2 November 2012.

e The contravention of listed building control alleged in the notice is (1) Replacement of
the windows on the front elevation of the listed building, as shown and numbered 1 to
54 inclusive on the photo exhibits DS/01 to DS/12 inclusive attached to the listed
building enforcement notice, with UPVC windows. (2) Replacement of the 12 windows
on the east facing elevation of the listed building, as shown and numbered 55 to 66
inclusive on the photo exhibits DS/13 and DS14 attached to the listed building
enforcement notice, with UPVC windows. (3) Replacement of the windows on the rear
elevation of the listed building, as shown and numbered 67 to 108 inclusive on the
photo exhibits DS/30 to DS/36 inclusive attached to the listed building enforcement,
notice with UPVC windows.

e The requirements of the notice are: to replace (1) The 54 windows on the front
elevation (2) the 12 windows on the east facing elevation and (3) the 42 windows on
the rear elevation as specified above with timber framed windows to match the design
and specification of the windows prior to their unauthorised replacement.

e The period for compliance with the requirements is 12 months.

e The appeal is made on the grounds set out in section 39(1) (e), (h), (i) and (j) of the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended.

Decision

1. The listed building enforcement notice is varied by the omission from the
requirements of the notice of windows nos. 75 - 78 and 83 - 88 inclusive, 93
and 94 as numbered on the photograph sheets attached to the listed building
enforcement notice. However, the appeal is allowed on the grounds that the
listed building enforcement notice is void through uncertainty and is
consequently quashed.

Procedural matters

2. After considering the Historical Assessment of the appeal building and the
group in which it is located, carried out for the appellants, the Council has
suggested that the listed building enforcement notice should be amended to
omit the requirement to replace some of the windows to the rear of the
building. To this end, the Council has submitted appendix A with these
windows highlighted in yellow.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate

Page 94



Appeal Decision APP/T1410/F/12/2188806

However, only some of the windows marked in the appendix (nos. 75 - 78 and
83 - 88 inclusive 93 and 94) were included on the original schedule attached to
the notice. The others were not included on that schedule and are not,
therefore, being enforced against in any event.

Since the appeal was lodged, the Government has issued its latest Planning
Practice Guidance (PPG), which supersedes a number of Circulars and planning
guidance documents. However, the Historic Environment Planning Practice
Guide (HEPPG) issued by the DCLG, English Heritage and the DCMS, to which
reference has been made, has not been withdrawn and I am satisfied that
there is nothing in the cases already made by the parties that would be
affected by, or would need to be amended in response to, the publication of the
new PPG.

Main Issue

5.

I consider that the main issue on the appeal on ground (e) is the effect of the
replacement windows on the special architectural and historic character of the
listed building and its setting within the Eastbourne Town Centre and Seafront
Conservation Area.

Site and surroundings

6.

The appeal property is a hotel that occupies a number of the town houses in
the group that, together with a central hotel, originally formed nos. 5 - 23
Grand Parade. The group of buildings are listed Grade II* and are described in
the listing description as 'the best series of buildings in Eastbourne’. They were
built in the middle of the 19" Century but in a style that was popular some 30
years earlier.

The block stands close to the sea front and the pier, overlooking the formally
laid out ‘Carpet Gardens’ between the road and the pedestrian promenade.
The Claremont Hotel occupies the 6 former houses at its eastern end, turning
the corner at the junction of Grand Parade and EIms Avenue/Cavendish Place
and is within the Eastbourne Town Centre and Seafront Conservation Area.

The Claremont Hotel rises to 3 storeys and an attic above a semi-basement.
The main elevation facing the seafront consists of a series of regular bays with
those at the eastern end divided by Ionic columns to the first and second
storeys, supporting the cornice above. This arrangement is reflected at the
western end of the larger block, but the building is not symmetrical. The
central portion originally had an extra storey, 5 windows wide, but the bays on
either side have now also been raised to this height, as have 3 of the houses to
the west and 2 to the east. The remainder of the houses to the west (5 in
total) have had mansard roofs with dormers added whereas the roofs of the
houses comprising the Claremont Hotel retain their original profiles. To the
rear the buildings have been altered, extended and repaired after bomb
damage to the block.

The windows that are the subject of the listed building enforcement notice are
on all 3 elevations of the Claremont Hotel. All the first, second and attic floor
windows of the front elevation have been replaced in UPVC, as have all bar 4
on the east elevation. All the ground floor windows on these 2 elevations,
apart from one on the eastern side, have been retained in timber. The new
windows are double glazed and, whilst they are generally consistent in their
design detail, they do not always reflect the glazing patterns of the windows
they replaced, as shown on the photographs attached to the listed building
enforcement notice.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 2

Page 95



Appeal Decision APP/T1410/F/12/2188806

Reasons
Ground (e)

10. The appeal on ground (e) seeks the grant of listed building consent for the
alterations that have taken place. This application is supported by the
appellant’s assessment of the historic significance of the building, which
concludes that the new windows to the front of the building are not having any
harmful impact, particularly in longer views from where they are difficult to
distinguish from the timber versions that they replaced.

11. It is true that the proportions of the important front elevation have not been
significantly altered by the replacement windows and the rhythm and hierarchy
of the fenestration has been maintained. It is also the case that there have
been earlier alterations to the block as a whole that have had a far greater
impact visually than the installation of the UPVC windows. Nevertheless, this
does not mean that further unsympathetic alterations should be considered
acceptable as this would eventually lead to a serious cumulative erosion of the
significance of the listed building.

12. There is strong encouragement to retain traditional materials on important
heritage assets such as this in the HEPPG where, in paragraph 149, the advice
is that 'repairing by re-using materials to match the original . . . helps maintain
authenticity’. In paragraph 152 it states '. .. windows are frequently key to
the significance of the building. Change is only advisable where the original is
beyond repair. . . © Whilst the wholesale renewal of the windows goes beyond
the scope of ‘repair’, these paragraphs nevertheless give no support to the
concept that it would be acceptable to change the material from which the
windows were originally made. In addition, paragraph 178 notes that the use
of materials is one of the main issues that should be considered when
assessing proposals for additions to heritage assets. Paragraph 179 says that
it is not appropriate to sacrifice old work simply to accommodate the new, as
appears to have happened in some instances at the Claremont Hotel.

13. It is the case that some of the windows that have been taken out were not
original and that there was a likely to have been a variety of windows across
the block as a whole, reflecting the different ownership of the individual
properties. Therefore, their replacement in UPVC has not necessarily resulted
in a total loss of all the historic fabric of the windows. However, the original
windows would all have previously been made of timber, and the change to
UPVC is, therefore, a radical one. In addition, I note that the HEPPG refers to
‘old’ rather than ‘original” work, suggesting that fabric does not have to be
original to be considered important or afforded protection.

14. The modern material has different properties to timber; the joints are generally
different and the moulding profiles less refined. There have been advances in
the quality of UPVC windows in recent years, particularly in the spacing of the
panes of double glazing and the quality of the finish of the plastic, but the
windows at the Claremont Hotel are not of this type. They have mitred joints,
silvered inserts in the double glazing and the flat featureless finish that is
typical of material of this age. These properties may not be obvious from a
distance, but they are clear from within the rooms of the hotel and
consequently have had a harmful impact on the architectural character and
historic interest of the building. The different reflective qualities of the double
glazed units also add to the changes in the external character of the facade.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 3

Page 96



Appeal Decision APP/T1410/F/12/2188806

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

It is not only the extent of the visibility of the change that is important. The
introduction of a material that is totally alien to a building of this age
undermines its historic integrity whether or not the change is immediately
obvious from public viewpoints.

The appellant makes the point that had UPVC been available at the time the
building was constructed, it might well have been employed for its weathering
properties in this seaside location. However, the material was not available
and is consequently not one that could ever be expected to be found in a Grade
IT* listed building of this age. The Council appears to have permitted the use
of the material in other buildings within the Conservation Area and the
appellant has listed some of these examples, but none of these relate to Grade
IT* listed buildings and are therefore not directly comparable to the appeal
premises.

Buildings can often be adapted and changed to suit modern requirements
without causing an adverse effect on their character, and the National Planning
Policy Framework (the Framework) supports the viable use of listed buildings
consistent with their conservation. However, this building has been in use as a
hotel for a number of years and I am not persuaded that a change in the
material of the windows is crucial to its ongoing viability.

To the rear of the building, there is now little architectural cohesion or special
character and the Council has accepted that a number of windows in extensions
to, or rebuilt parts of, the listed building can be omitted from the listed building
enforcement notice. Nevertheless, the inclusion of the remainder of the UPVC
windows has contributed to the overall historic deterioration of this elevation of
the building and they appear clumsy and inappropriate. They are less well
matched to the style of the building than those on the front and east elevations
and consequently have a comparatively greater impact.

The rear elevation is not mentioned in the listing description but this does not
lessen the importance of maintaining the character of the building as a whole.
This elevation is clearly seen from public viewpoints and I consider that the use
of UPVC windows with unequal frames to the sashes and top-hung opening
lights are adding to the degraded character of this part of the building and
harming the character and appearance of the surrounding conservation area.

Consequently, I consider that, although the harm caused to the listed building
by the installation of the windows is not ‘substantial’ as discussed in paragraph
133 of the Framework, there is harm nonetheless and paragraph 134 notes
that this should be considered against any public benefits of the alterations
before listed building consent could be granted for the works.

I accept that the installation of the windows may be commercially
advantageous for the owners of the building and have benefits in terms of
sound insulation and heat retention for the hotel rooms. Nevertheless the
building is, as previously noted, part of the best group in the town and only
5.5% of listed buildings are accorded Grade II* status. Such buildings are,
according to English Heritage, particularly important and of more than special
interest. I consider that the weight to be accorded to any harm identified to
such a building is significant and, in this case, the advantages noted would not
justify the harm caused by the permanent loss of the building’s traditional
windows.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 4

Page 97



Appeal Decision APP/T1410/F/12/2188806

22. To grant listed building consent would conflict with the statutory duty in

Section 16 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
(PLBCA) which requires special regard to be paid to the desirability of
preserving a listed building before granting listed building consent. It would
also conflict with the aims and objectives of policies UHT17 and UHT15 of the
Eastbourne Borough Plan 2001 - 2011 which seek to protect listed buildings
and conservation areas from harmful development. Although of some age,
these policies are nevertheless compliant with those of the Framework and the
provisions of the PLBCA. Therefore, I consider that listed building consent
should not be granted for the changes to the windows identified in the
(amended) listed building enforcement notice and the appeal on ground (e)
fails.

Grounds (i) and (j)

23.

24.

25.

26.

The appellant has put forward arguments under both grounds (i) and (j) but
these grounds of appeal are normally mutually exclusive because they relate to
2 different and alternative purposes that the requirements of a listed building
enforcement notice are intended to achieve. The Council cannot require any
improvements or alterations to the previous condition of a building to be
carried out through these requirements; in a case such as this, all it can seek is
the restoration of the building to its previous state or works to alleviate the
impact of the unauthorised works that have been carried out.

Ground (i) is used when the appellant considers that the steps required by the
notice would not serve the purpose of restore the character of the building to
its former state. In this case, the Council is invoking s.38(2)(a) of the PLBCA
and is therefore seeking to restore the building to its condition before the
works were carried out. This would be achieved by the like-for-like
replacement of the windows and its previous character would consequently be
restored and the appeal on ground (i) fails.

Under the appeal on ground (j) the appellant repeats the arguments put
forward for granting listed building consent but also suggests that alterations to
the windows, such as the installation of additional glazing bars, to match the
pattern of those shown in the Council’s photographs and the removal of the
horns to the top sashes would help to mitigate the impact of the UPVC
windows. However, as explained above, the Council has not sought to alleviate
the impact of the works through s.38(2)(b)of the PLBCA through the
requirements of the notice.

In any event, I consider that these measures would not go far enough to
indicate that the UPVC windows could be retained. I have explained the extent
of the harm in preceding paragraphs and cosmetic changes to the windows
would not overcome the fact that they are made from a material that is
unsympathetic and alien to the fabric of the listed building. The appeal on
ground (j) therefore also fails.

Validity of the listed building enforcement notice

27. The appellant submits that because the present owners of the building did not

carry out the alterations they do not have any direct knowledge of the details
of the construction of the windows that were replaced. The Council has not
provided such details and for this reason they submit that the notice is unclear
and consequently invalid as it does not specify exactly the details of what
should be put back.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 5

Page 98



Appeal Decision APP/T1410/F/12/2188806

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

It is normally the case that the owners of the building are in the best position
to know the detail of what has been taken out and how to put back what was
previously there. However, that is not the case here and there is little evidence
to draw on that would help the appellant. The windows in the photographs
attached to the enforcement notice show 2 stages in the building’s
development and the photographs of the front and east elevations are claimed
to have been taken in 2006 and appear to show the timber windows still in
situ. However, these windows include a variety of designs, including what look
to be double glazed casements and, whilst the glazing patterns and proportions
are discernable, the details of the frames, sashes and glazing bar mouldings
are not.

The photographs of the windows to the rear show the UPVC replacements and
were taken in 2010. There is no photographic record of the previous windows
on this elevation attached to the notice, although some of the photographs
submitted as appendix A with the appeal statement appear to be from an
earlier date and show some of the windows that have now been replaced. The
Council has asked me to omit a number of windows from the notice and this I
am able to do, but appendix A serves only to identify those windows and,
because of the discrepancies within it, I will not attach it to the notice.

In any event, the second set of photographs is similar to those already
attached to the notice, in that they do not show specific details of the windows
to be replaced. Even if they could now be appended to the listed building
enforcement notice, they would not, in my view, give sufficient clarification on
what is required in the way of reinstatement. For these reasons, I consider
that the listed building enforcement notice is unclear in respect of the
requirements and does not give the appellant sufficient detail of what must be
done to rectify the breach of control.

The Council has apparently suggested that the appellant should submit details
of the proposed replacement windows, so that it can determine whether or not
they would meet the requirements of the listed building enforcement notice.
This procedure would not be acceptable, as the courts have established that
the notice must be clear on its face and tell the recipient exactly what he must
do to comply, otherwise it is invalid.

The Council has also made some suggestions of what it considers would be
appropriate in its appeal statement, but this is not part of the listed building
enforcement notice and cannot be used as a definitive guide. Consequently, I
conclude that, as, in this case, the Council cannot rely on the knowledge of the
owners to inform the details of the replacements, the listed building
enforcement notice is void through uncertainty and will be quashed.

Other matters

33.

As previously noted, the Council cannot require any improvements to be
carried out unilaterally through a listed building enforcement notice and is
restricted to, at most, requiring the replacement of what was previously there.
Therefore, if the Council decides to issue a replacement notice, it will need to
consider whether it is able to provide the owners of the building with sufficient
detail of the former timber windows so that they can be replicated. These
details would need to accompany the notice and include an explanation of
exactly what the Council wishes to see carried out.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 6

Page 99



Appeal Decision APP/T1410/F/12/2188806

34.

35.

36.

However, there is, of course, the alternative of a discussion between the
parties to try and agree a suitable scheme that could, in due course, be
submitted for listed building consent, to regularise the situation. It is clear that
the windows on the 2 main elevations were made of timber at the time of
listing in 1948 and there may well be examples of windows in other parts of the
terrace that could provide suitable patterns for the replacement of those in the
Claremont Hotel.

As the listed building enforcement notice will be quashed, there is no need for
me to consider the appeal on ground (h), that more time should be granted to
comply with the requirements. However, this is a matter that, if the parties

manage to negotiate a way forward, would also need to be taken into account.

There is encouragement in the Framework to ensure the vitality of town
centres and to support commercial enterprises. These factors would need to
be considered when determining any timescale for the completion of the
window replacements, given that the hotel would need to remain open for
business during the process.

Conclusions

37.

38.

The listed building enforcement notice will be varied to omit windows nos. 75 -
78, 83 - 88 inclusive and 93 and 94, as included in photograph appendix A, as
requested by the Council. However, for the reasons given above I conclude
that the appeal on grounds (e), (i) and (j) should fail.

Nevertheless, I conclude that the listed building enforcement notice does not
specify with sufficient clarity the steps required for compliance. I do not have
the information necessary to correct this omission and vary the notice in this
respect. In any event, the powers transferred to me in accordance with section
41(2) of the PLBCA do not extend to the expansion of the requirements of the
notice to the degree that would be required, as this would cause injustice to
the appellant. As the notice is void for uncertainty, it will be quashed. In
these circumstances the appeal under ground (h) set out in section 39(1) of
the PLBCA does not fall to be considered.

Katie Peerless

Inspector

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 7

Page 100



* The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 28 April 2014

by Stephenie Hawkins BSocSc(Hons) MPhil MSc MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 24 July 2014

Appeal Ref: APP/T1410/A/14/2211151
Beverley Court, 2/3 South Cliff, Eastbourne, East Sussex BN20 7AE

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Paternoster Properties against the decision of Eastbourne
Borough Council.

e The application Ref 130424, dated 28 May 2013, was refused by notice dated
25 September 2013.

e The development proposed is described on the application form as: “"Replacement of
single-glazed wooden framed windows and exterior doors with new double-glazed PVCu
framed windows and doors”.

Decision

1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for double-glazed
PVCu framed windows and doors at Beverley Court, 2/3 South CIiff,
Eastbourne, East Sussex BN20 7AE in accordance with the terms of the
application, Ref 130424, dated 28 May 2013, subject to the following
conditions:

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years
from the date of this decision.

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans: Location Plan and Drawing No
13-57-866W (Rev *).

3) Notwithstanding condition 2, no development shall take place until full
details of the windows/doors to be replaced have been submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the local planning authority. Development shall
be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The details are to
show which windows and doors are to be replaced and by which window
system - that is, Rehau Heritage or Rehau Standard. For each style of
window/door to be replaced by the Rehau Heritage System, the details
are to show the design and dimensions, including meeting rails, bottom
rails, horns and, where applicable, transoms. The door to the main front
elevation is to be shown as excluded from the scheme of replacement.

Procedural Matters

2. The description of development as used in the case details above is taken from
the application form. Whilst this states that development is for the
replacement of wooden framed windows, the covering letter submitted with the

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate

Page 101



Appeal Decision APP/T1410/A/14/2211151

application states that aluminium framed windows would also be replaced.
I have therefore edited the description of development used in my formal
decision to reflect this.

The application was not supported by elevational drawings indicating which
windows/doors are proposed to be replaced and by which window system -
that is, Rehau Heritage or Rehau Standard. Whilst the application form states
that the Heritage System would be applied to the front elevation and the
Standard System to the side and rear elevations, the covering letter states that
the Heritage System would be applied to front facing windows visible from the
street with the Standard System applied to the windows on the hidden parts of
the side elevations and rear elevations. As such, it is not clear what is
intended where the appeal premises step back from the main front elevation.
However, on the basis of the covering letter, which gives greater detail than
the application form, I interpret the proposed development as applying the
Heritage System to the main front elevation, together with the step backs,
herein referred to as the principal elevation. Notwithstanding this, I note the
appellant’s appeal statement states that the door to the main front elevation is
to remain, which I have taken into account in my determination of the appeal.

Other than the Location Plan, the application was supported by one plan -
Drawing No 13-57-866W (Rev *). This illustrates the Rehau New Heritage V/S
Window System for two window styles, together with sections. The drawing is
noted as indicative and it is clear from my site visit that it does not show all the
window/door styles to the principal elevation, or indeed all the window styles to
the main front elevation. Notwithstanding this, the Council based it decision on
this plan and, accordingly, so have I.

Revisions to Drawing No 13-57-866W (Rev *) were submitted with the appeal,
showing amended dimensions and an additional window style, and the addition
of run through horns. Notwithstanding this, the original plan submitted with
the application, together with the revised plans, still do not show all the
window/door styles to the principal elevation, or indeed all the window styles to
the main front elevation. As such, the revised plans add little to my
understanding of the proposed development over and above that shown on
Drawing No 13-57-866W (Rev *). Given this, and that the appeal process
should not normally be used as a means to evolve a proposal, whilst noting the
revisions, I have determined the application on the basis of Drawing No
13-57-866W (Rev *).

As far as is relevant, I have taken the Planning Practice Guidance (PPG),
launched on 6 March 2014, into account in reaching my decision.

Main Issue

7.

The main issue is the effect of the proposed development, in terms of the
principal elevation, on the character and appearance of the appeal premises
and the Town Centre and Seafront Conservation Area.

Reasons

8.

The appeal premises comprise a pair of semi-detached properties that have
been converted into flats. The premises are a substantial building, of the
Victorian era, standing four storeys over a partially visible basement, with a
rendered and decorative facade, including bay windows in a hierarchical design.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 2

Page 102



Appeal Decision APP/T1410/A/14/2211151

10.

11.

12.

The premises are located towards the western end of the Town Centre and
Seafront Conservation Area in an elevated position overlooking the sea. They
form part of a row of properties between South Cliff Avenue and Silverdale
Road, largely comprised of similar properties, with the key exception of an infill
development adjacent to the appeal premises. Whilst the Conservation Area is
extensive, it appears to me that the significance of this part of the seafront lies
in the architecture of the buildings, especially when read as a group, to which
the appeal premises make a positive contribution.

I appreciate that the front elevation of the appeal premises retains many
original, or replacement, timber sash windows. I also note that Guideline WD2
of the Eastbourne Townscape Guide (ETG), adopted as Supplementary Planning
Guidance in July 2004, normally expects historic buildings in conservation
areas to retain the original design and material of their windows and doors.

Notwithstanding shortcomings in the information supplied, Drawing No
13-57-866W (Rev *) indicates the design of the windows proposed, which to an
extent has been added to with information submitted during the appeal
process. On the basis of the information before me, I am satisfied that the
various styles of the original/replacement timber windows could be closely
replicated, including in respect of meeting rails, bottom rails and horns. In
such circumstances, the proposed windows would be practically
indistinguishable from the original/replacement timber windows to a causal
passer-by. As such, there would be no, or at most little, harm to the character
and appearance of the appeal premises and the Conservation Area, especially
given the heritage significance of this part lies in the architecture of the
buildings when read as group.

However, as the proposed windows may be just distinguishable to some, there
is a risk, albeit small, that the character and appearance of the Conservation
Area may not be fully preserved. As such, whilst the proposed development
would generally accord with Policies UHT1 and UHT4 of the Eastbourne Borough
Plan (EBP), adopted September 2003, and Policy D10A of the Eastbourne Core
Strategy Local Plan (ECSLP), which are concerned with design and visual
amenity, there could be conflict with Policy UHT15 of the EBP and Policy D10 of
the ECSLP, which require development in a conservation area to preserve its
character and appearance. In addition, there would be conflict with Guideline
WD2 of the ETG in that the material of the windows would change.

However, the use of the word normally within Guideline WD2 of the ETG
implies exceptions may be allowed. Moreover, it is not disputed by the Council
that the proposed development would deliver a benefit in terms of energy
efficiency, in line with the National Planning Policy Framework. Whilst the
Council suggest slim secondary glazing should be used to improve energy
efficiency, the appellant sets out that this would be impractical, including as the
surrounds have limited internal depth, and contends it would not achieve the
performance of the proposed windows. Given this, and that the design of the
original/replacement windows could be closely replicated, I consider an
improvement in energy efficiency to be a benefit that outweighs the small risk
of harm to the Conservation Area

Conclusion and Conditions

13.

For the reasons given above, the appeal should be allowed.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 3

Page 103



Appeal Decision APP/T1410/A/14/2211151

14. I have considered the conditions suggested by the Council against paragraph
206 of the Framework and the advice in the PPG. Notwithstanding the
appellant’s comments, given the shortcomings in the details of the proposed
development, as set out above, I consider it necessary, in the interests of the
character and appearance of the appeal premises and the Conservation Area,
to require full details of the windows/doors to be replaced to be agreed with
the local planning authority. In addition, I have attached the standard time
limit condition and, for the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper
planning, a condition requiring the development to be carried out in accordance
with the approved plans.

Stephenie Hawkins
INSPECTOR

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 4

Page 104



	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 16 February 2016.
	7 Planning Applications for Consideration.
	8 Seafront Window Survey.
	Seafront Window Survey - Appendix 1.
	Seafront Window Survey - Appendix 2.
	Seafront Window Survey - Appendix 3.
	white rocks hotel appeal decision 1990
	Ayra Court pins decision allowed 2011
	F2 6 South cliff appeal decision 2012
	claremont appeal decision 2014
	Beverley Court appeal decision 2014





